HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 4, 2012
1:47 p.m

1:47: 00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Conmmittee neeting
to order at 1:47 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello
Representative M ke Doogan

Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative David Cuttenberg
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

Representati ve Mark Neuman
Representative Tanme W/ son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Edgnon; Joe Mchel, Staff, Co-Chair Stoltze;
Deborah Bitney, Dy vision Director, Departnent of Revenue;
Representative Paul Seaton; Representative Charisse Mllet;
Jessica Lukin, Self; Meera Kohler, CEO Alaska Village
El ectric Co-op

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Marl ene Canpbell, Gty and Borough of Sitka; Kim Elliott,
Sitka; Witney Brewster, Director, Division of Mdtor
Vehi cl es; Rodney Dial, Lieutenant, Al aska State Troopers,
Ket chi kan; Val Angasan, Bristol Bay Housing Authority,
DI lingham Robbie Garrett, Self, Kake

SUMVARY

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



HB 190 PFD ALLOMABLE ABSENCE

CSSSHB 190(FIN) was REPORTED out of comittee
with a "do pass” recommendation and wth
previously published zero fiscal note: FN1 (REV).

HB 212 PROVI SI ONAL DRI VER S LI CENSE STI CKER

HB 212 was HEARD and HELD in committee for
further consideration.

HB 255 READI NG OR TYPI NG MESSACGE VWH LE DRI VI NG

CSHB 255(JUD) was REPORTED out of conmittee with
a "do pass" recommendation and wth one zero
fiscal note from the Departnent of Law, one zero
fiscal note for Departnment of Admnistration by
t he House Finance Committee and three previously
published zero fiscal notes: FN1 (ADM, FN2
(COR), FN3 (CRT).

HB 294 POWNER COST EQUALI ZATI ON

HB 294 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

HB 365 AQUATI C | NVASI VE SPECI ES

HB 365 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

1:47: 06 PM

#hb190
HOUSE BILL NO. 190

"An Act relating to the allowable absence for active
duty service nenbers of the arned forces for purposes
of permanent fund dividend eligibility."

Vice-chair Fairclough MOVED to ADOPT proposed conmttee
substitute for SSHB 190(FIN), Wrk Draft 27-LS0564\L,
(Kirsch 4/4/12) as a working docunent.

Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for the purpose of discussion.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



JOE M CHEL, STAFF, CO CHAIR STOLTZE stated that version L
of the Ilegislation reflected changes from a previous
nmeeti ng. The | anguage had been omtted from Section 2, sub-
paragraph (f), line 29:

"such as the financial circunstances of the individual
or the ability of the individual to find enploynment in
the state;"

M. Mchel noted that the second change in Section 2 had
been the renoval of the follow ng | anguage:

"whet her the individual made a career choice or chose
a career path that does not allow the individual to
reside in or return to the state.”

DEBORAH BI TNEY, DI VI SION DI RECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE,
testified in support of the changes to the |egislation. She
said that the departnent intended to create regulations
that would <clearly define how the statutes would be
appl i ed.

Co-Chair Stoltze W THDREW hi s objection

Vi ce-chair Fairclough MOVED to report CSSSHB 190(FIN) out
of commttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

CSSSHB 190(FIN) was REPORTED out of committee with a "do
pass" recomendation and wth previously published zero
fiscal note: FN1 (REV).

1:51: 53 PM
AT EASE

1: 53: 02 PM
RECONVENED

#hb365
HOUSE BI LL NO. 365

"An Act relating to the rapid response to, and control of,
aquatic invasive species.”

Vi ce-chair Fairclough MOVED to ADOPT proposed conmttee

substitute for HB 365(RES), Wrk Draft 27-LS1439\M as a
wor ki ng docunent .

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



Representati ve Gut t enberg OBJECTED  for pur pose of
di scussi on.

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON testified that the House
Resources version of the bill changed the term "aquatic
i nvasi ve species” to "marine aquatic invasive species”. The
change had been nade to namke the drawi ng of response plans
easier for the Departnment of Fish and Gane (DF&G .

Co-Chair Stoltze recalled that during past discussions
concerning invasive plants an effort had been nade to be
i nclusive of the fishing industry. He questioned the reason
for the inclusivity.

Representative Quttenberg relayed that the issue of
i nvasi ve species ran statew de, and that one body of water
[salt versus fresh] was not nore inportant than another.

Representative Seaton replied that no priority had been
intended either way. He said that the intention of the
| egislation was to provide a way for departnments to respond
quickly to an enmergency situation triggered by a new
i nvasi on.

Representative Quttenberg felt that the ability to respond
rapidly was a necessity for both |akes and salt water. He
suggested that sonme invasive species could make their way
into the water by way of pet shops. He added that sone
i nvaders could be brought to marine waters by way of fresh
wat er .

Representative GQuttenberg WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There
being NO further OBJECTION it was so ordered.

1: 59: 23 PM

Representati ve Costello expressed concern for t he
particul ar area of Sand Lake, which was a fresh water | ake.

Representative Seaton shared that the Departnment of Fish
and Gane (DF&5 had indicated that the word "aquatic" was
too broad a term The understanding was that the bill would
not make it through the legislative process using such a
general term He stated that the decision was nmade to
concentrate on marine waters. He relayed that he supported
the eradication of invasive species throughout the state
and mai ntai ned no objection to broadening the |anguage to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



i nclude aquatics, provided it did not require DF&G to draw
up an energency plan for every stream and |ake in Al aska.
He reiterated that the intent was to exam ne energency
situations in linmted geographic areas where response could
be swift and successful. He furthered that an energency
situation, involving the contam nation of an entire river
system would require an extended anmount of response tinmne.
He asserted that the legislation was intended to provide
rapid response to energency situations in alimted area.

Representative Costello comented that her district had
been dealing with safety issues related to Sand Lake. She
understood that there were many ways to go about solving
the Sand Lake problem her approach was to submt a capital
budget request.

2:04: 36 PM

Representative Neuman testified that his region of the
Susitna River Valley was experiencing a problem wth
Northern  Pike. The invasive species had devastated
tributaries at Al exander Creek, which negatively affected
the salnon population. He highlighted that the 1oss of
sal non supply for commercial and sport fishing would have a
negative effect on the econony. He wondered if |anguage
could be witten into the bill that wuld speak to
responding to the problem of Northern Pike.

Representative Seaton explained that the purpose of the
legislation was to provide DF&G with the tools to perform
an energency eradication in a |limted geographic area. He
said that the eradication of Northern Pike in the entire
Susitna drainage could harm other species of fish in the
water. He relayed that the tools already being used under

the invasive species plan were neant for |ong-range
pl anning. He reiterated that the purpose of the bill was to
deal with a new invasive species in a small area. He

assured the conmmttee that the debate was not about
saltwater species being nore inportant than fresh water
species, but stressed there were different ways that
endemc infestations were handled versus an energency
reaction to a newinvasion in a limted geographic area. He
furthered that the bill would give DF&G the ability to
allow for the sacrifice of managenment of one species in a
limted geographic area in order to eradicate any new
i nvasi ve speci es.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



2:10:16 PM

Representative Neuman noted that the bill would create a
plan for salt water. He said that in the case of Al exander
Creek, the Northern Pike could be specifically targeted in
early spring because there were no sal non species yet in
the tributaries large enough to be caught in nets. He
argued that this was exactly what the departnment was
already doing in the marine aquatic areas; developing a
| ong-term plan that would eradicate the invasive species in
order to save fisheries inportant to the -econony. He
believed that the long-term plan should be witten into the
| egi sl ati on.

Representative Seaton agreed with Representative Neuman. He
added that there was a long-term plan to target |onger
periods of time. He restated that the intention of the bill
was to give the enmergency authority to elimnate everything
in a limted geographic area in order to eradicate a new
i nvasi ve species before it spread to rest of the state.

Representati ve Neuman hoped to discuss the issue further
with the departnent.

Co-Chair Thomas cited sub-section (f):

“In this section, "marine aquatic invasive species”
means an organism introduced to a marine ecosystemto
which it is not native and whose introduction causes,
or is likely to cause, economc or environmental harm
or harmto human heal th."

Representative Neuman felt that further clarification was
necessary.

Representative Seaton clarified that the term "marine" was
generally applied to salt water. He said that both fresh
and salt water could be addressed in the |egislation.

2:15: 09 PM

Representative WIson questioned if any projections had
been made of how handling small areas at a tine could
benefit the state financially.

Representative Seaton replied there was currently an
i nvasi ve species council that focused on |ong-range plans,

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



but that the legislation was intended to provide the tools
to make the inmediate eradication of new invasive species
possible. He stressed his desire to ensure energency
response capability for the departnment.

Representative WIson understood that the bill contained a
plan for solely salt water, which had resulted in a smaller
fiscal note.

Representative Seaton replied that that was correct. He
said that according to the departnment the |ake systens were
so different that the plans to devel op each one woul d have
t aken over ten years.

Co- Chair Thomas understood that the departnment was seeking
the ability to actively respond to an infestation rather
t han spending $20 mllion on a witten plan.

2:18: 43 PM

Representative Gara shared Representative Neuman concern
for fresh water. He expressed concern that the bill was not
tailored to deal with fresh water issues. He pointed out to
the commttee that the inplenmentation of an enmergency Kkill
of Northern Pike could risk the health of many other
species of fish. He stated that he did not believe that the
legislation was worded in a way that would effectively
protect fresh water.

Co-Chair Thomas said that the other body put in a request
in the FY13 Operating Budget to increase noney in for the
probl em of Northern Pike.

Vice-chair Fairclough shared that the House Finance
Commttee had changed nore than sub-section (f) of the
original legislation. She suggested that commttee nenbers
famliarize thenmselves wth the changes between the
ori ginal docunent and the one that was currently before the
comm ttee.

MARLENE  CAMPBELL, CITY AND BOROUGH OF SITKA (via
tel econference) voiced support for the bill. She testified
that an invasive species identified in 2010, had rapidly
had spread. She said that DF&G had done a dive survey and
had nmapped the infestation, which had been confined to
Wi tening Harbor wuntil the novenent of aqua farm pieces
into Sitka Sound. She feared that the spread of the species

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



could potentially eradicate all other species, which would
have a negative inpact on Sitka fisheries. She relayed that
there was wide support in the community to hire an expert
environmental firm to contain and eradicate the invader.
She stressed that Sitka had 5 harbors that generated
approximately $140 mllion in conmmercial fisheries nonies
per year. Additionally, 10 percent of Sitka's population
was directly involved in the sea industry, and indirect
i npact was nearly 50 percent. She concluded that the issue
was of grave inportance to the future if the fishing
i ndustry and urged the tinely passage of the |egislation.

2:26:49 PM

KIM ELLI OTT, SITKA (via tel econference), voiced support for
the bill. She voiced concern that the issue of invasive
species in Al aska be addressed immedi ately, beyond talking
at the table. She feared that the invasive species in Sitka
Sound would spread to affect the herring and scallop
popul ati ons.

2:28: 54 PM

Co- Chair Thomas CLOSED public testinony.

HB 365 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

2:29:34 PM
AT EASE

2:37:45 PM
RECONVENED

#hb212
HOUSE BI LL NO. 212

"An Act relating to requirenents for persons holding
provi sional drivers' |icenses."
2:38: 01 PM

Vi ce-chair Fairclough MOVED to ADOPT the commttee
substitute for HB 212, Wrk Draft 27-LSOr38\1 as a working
docunent. There being NO OBJECTION it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE CHARISSE M LLET introduced her support
staff.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



JESSICA LUKIN, SELF, testified that the Al aska G aduated
License Program was a three-step program designed to
devel op safe driving habits, as well as to slowy introduce
young drivers to Al askan road systens. One of the steps in
t he program was graduating from an instructional permt to
a provisional license. Having a provisional |icense had the
following restrictions:

e Driver may not carry passengers unless one of the
passengers was at |east 21 years of age

» Passengers under the age of 21 nust be siblings

e Driver nmay not operate vehicle between the hours of 1
AM and 5 AM unl ess acconpani ed by a person at |east 21
years of age

Ms. Lukin continued that although the restrictions were in
pl ace, they were generally ignored by many young drivers

She directed committee attention to her presentation titled
"Novice Driver Safety: Safer Al askan Roads for Al askan
Drivers.” She testified that she had recently had the
experience of participating in the Juneau C ose-Up program
As honmewor k she had been required to study state and |oca

government, and to present an idea for legislation to a
state representative or senator; the product was HB 212.

Ms. Lukin cited page 2 of her presentation, which was a
phot ograph of the car she and her fam |y had been extracted
from after being struck head-on by a teenaged driver. She
shared that the accident had noved her to advocate for
safer teen driving practices. She continued to page 3
titled, "Cause of death anpbng teenagers between 1999-2006."
The chart hi ghlighted that of the 48 percent of
unintentional injuries suffered by teenagers in the United
States, 73 percent were notor vehicle traffic accidents.
Page 4 illustrated the Alaska Statistics for Drivers 14-16
(2004-2008). She pointed out that out the nunbers were
hi ghest in 2008. Page 5 cited nore statistics for drivers
16-17, specifically the total drivers in fatal crashes by
age in Alaska from 2002 to 2011. She noted that there was
no information available of the effects of the accidents on
t he occupants of the other vehicles or the general public.
Page 6, titled "Provisional Licensed Drivers" listed that
provi sional l|icensed drivers were hazardous due to:

* Apprehension
» Lack of experience

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



« Weat her conditions
* No driver's education requirenent
» Alaska's diversity fromother states

2:42: 39 PM

Ms. Lukin continued with page 7, titled "Sol ution”

* A person holding a provisional driver's |icense shal
display in the rear wi ndow of each vehicle operated by
the person a sticker issued by the departnment that
identifies that the vehicle 1is operated by a
provi si onal |icensee.

Ms. Lukin directed the conmttee's attention so page 8,
whi ch contained pictures of the proposed stickers as they
were used in other areas of the world. She continued to
page 9, titled "Way This Sol ution?"

* This is a sinple solution to benefit Al askan drivers

e It wll inpress other driver's to be nore cautious
driving around the novice driver

e It wil | provi de ot her drivers the information
necessary to wunderstand the Provisional Licensee's
position

e This wll assi st | aw enforcenent of ficers in

i npl enenting the | aw

Ms. Lukin continued to page 10, titled "Enforcenent":

e Failure to display a sticker as required by this
subsection is an infraction and may be punished by a
fine of not nore than $200

Ms. Lukin continued to page 11, which suggested what m ght
occur if the bill were passed into | aw

e The State of Alaska wll supply the Departnent of
Motor Vehicles with stickers to distribute to those
persons acquiring an Provisional License

« Those acquiring a Provisional License will pay for the
sticker as part of the permtting process
o Sticker will be placed on the rear w ndow of the

operating vehicle.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



Ms. Lukin concluded with page 12, "Summary":

« Teen drivers wth Pr ovi si onal Li cense are
statistically nore hazardous to thenselves and other
Al askans

* Require Provisional drivers to identify their status

* Reduce the nunmber of accidents and infractions in
Al aska, and hel p save Al askan |ives

2:45: 28 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough noted that tinted w ndows could
interfere with sticker visibility. She added that page 2,
lines 15-16 indicated that communities under 500 people
would not need to apply, creating a new threshold under
state law. She felt that a threshold already witten into
statute should be used.

Ms. Lukin responded that the new threshold was necessary
because it was assunmed that smaller, |ess populated, rura
areas woul d have |l ess actual mles of drivable road.

Vice-chair Fairclough requested a response from the
Department of Modtor Vehicles (DW). She shared the story of
the tragic death of a young woman in her comunity. The
young worman's nother had queried whether the tragedy could
have been avoided if she had been driving with a passenger.
She suggested that the sticker on a vehicle could be a
problem if exploited by a predator searching for easy
Vi ctims.

Ms. Lukin agreed that the situation had been tragic. She
noted that the victim had not been underage and pointed out
that any person anywhere could be stalked by a sexual
predator. She shared that she had talked with the nanager
of the special Departnment of Traffic Safety in New Jersey,
where the bill had been inplenmented, and had | earned that
research had shown that sexual predators were nore likely
to use the internet to target victins.

Vice-chair Fairclough requested that the legislation be
held until further research could be done. She noted that
Al aska had the highest rates of donestic violence and rape
in the country. She pointed out to the conmttee that the
Covenant House was |ocated in downtown Anchorage, and that
predators wal ked 4th and 5th Avenues in Anchorage waiting
for an opportunity to strike. She asserted that she was not

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



trying to kill bill, but wanted nore input from the
comunity.

2:52:45 PM

Vi ce-chair Fairclough continued her questioning. She asked
about small communities that had a popul ation of under 500
peopl e. She understood that the communities would need to
enforce the stickers if they were on the road system

Ms. Lukin replied in the affirmative. She added that she
had talked to nmenbers of the Anchorage Police Departnent
whi |l e resear chi ng weat her t he victinms of sexua
statistically knew their predators. She reported that
statistically, victims of sexual assault knew their
attackers prior to the assault.

Vice-chair Fairclough agreed that nobst victins of sexual
assault knew their attackers.

Co-Chair Stoltze nentioned in gangs in Florida had targeted
rental cars with visible stickers; out-of-state drivers did
not qualify wunder the right-to-carry law and would
t her ef ore be unar ned.

2:55:38 PM

Representative WIson requested further risk research done.
She queried whether males would be nore reckless than
female drivers. She wondered if there were statistics
avai lable showing that incidents of accidents involving
teenaged drivers in New Jersey had |essened under the
| egi sl ati on.

Ms. Lukin explained that the goal of the legislation was to
provide new drivers a wder berth from nore experienced
drivers. Additionally, it would aid law enforcenent in
catching teenage drivers carrying too many passengers. She
shared that school districts in Wasilla and Eagle R ver had
reported problens with teens driving with too nany underage
passengers at lunch and after school. She noted that nost
accidents involving teenaged drivers occurred during after
school hours.

Representative W]Ison expressed concern that police would

be pulling over cars with many passengers, and a sticker in
the wi ndow, even if it was driven by an adult.

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



2:58:51 PM

Ms. Lukin highlighted that new subsection (c) had been
added to the legislation in order to speak to
Representative WIlson's concerns. She said that driving was
a responsibility and that teen drivers should go through a
checklist every time they got in the car; checking lights
and turn signals, nmaking sure they have their |icense,
checking for the sticker in the back w ndow, and all other
saf ety precautions.

Representative WIson suggested that Mk Lukin m ght
understand when she was older, and a nother, that young
peopl e would not take the |listed necessary precautions. She
offered that Ms. Lukin would "understand when she was
ol der."

3:00: 31 PM
Representati ve Neuman appl auded the effort of the bill. He
asserted that teenagers were already "cop nmagnets". He

wondered how it could be ensured that young people were not
being treated as a second class. He voiced strong support
for prelimnary driver's education courses. He thought that
the bill infringed on the rights of teenagers and made them
targets for the police.

Ms. Lukin replied that creating a second class was not the
intention of the legislation. She reiterated that the goa
was to keep drivers on the road safe from new,
i nexperienced, aggressive, young drivers. She noted that
the success of the program could not be neasured until the
program had tinme to take actual affect.

Representative Neuman worried that the legislation would
tax the already |limted Al aska State Troopers, and would
slow their response tine. He believed that there were nany
public safety concerns that should be considered.

3:05:47 PM

Represent ati ve Doogan spoke in favor of the legislation. He
shared that between the ages of 16 and 19 he had wrecked 3
autonobiles. He shared M. Lukin's concern about young
drivers, and hoped that the discussion would be fruitful.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



Representati ve Edgnon asked if research for the |egislation
had revealed that | aw enforcenent m ght be nore
accommodating to a teenager with a sticker in their w ndow.

Ms. Lukin replied in the negative. She believed that if the
officer saw a sticker they mght be a bit nore gracious and
take the status as a new driver into consideration when
wei ghing any smal |l infraction.

Representative Edgnon asked if New Jersey had encountered
savings on car insurance due to the |egislation.

Ms. Lunkin replied that insurance conpanies mght be
willing to give breaks to users of the program

3:09:15 PM

Representative Joule relayed that society often wanted the
younger population to accept responsibility for their
actions, and that the bill was offering a way to do so. He
qualified that the Ilegislation needed to be exam ned
further.

Ms. Lukin stressed that the benefit of the |egislation
would be that lives would be saved. She shared that she
| ooked forward to working with the conmttee on drafting a
conpr ehensi ve pi ece of |egislation.

Co-Chair Stoltze OPENED public testinony.

VWH TNEY BREWSTER, DI RECTOR, DI VI SION OF MOTOR VEHI CLES (via
tel econference), testified that the DW currently had
approximately 6250 unexpired provisional |icense holders.
She noted the zero fiscal note attached to the bill. She
shared that the static-cling decal would cost $.25, which
would cost less than $1000 to administer. She said that
there were rural exenptions for vehicle registration and
i nsurance requirenents, as well as commercial driver's
licenses in communities that were off the road system and
had a daily traffic volunme of 499 or less. She said that
the provision would protect conmunities that had a daily
traffic volunme over 500, but were still considered very
rural. She noted that sone rural comunities did not have
access to a DW office, and would not be required to have
t he provisional sticker.

3:15:49 PM

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



RODNEY DI AL, LI EUTENANT, ALASKA STATE TROOPERS, KETCHI KAN
(via teleconference), testified that the departnent was
neutral on the bill.

Vice-chair Fairclough reiterated her concern that by
applying the sicker, young drivers would be advertising
that they were alone in their vehicles, and could be
targeted by predators.

M. Dial responded that he understood the concern, but that
the department had no basis to form an opinion on the
matter at this time.

Vice-chair Fairclough inforned the conmttee that sone of
the smaller comunities in the state had very high rates of
child abuse. She maintained concern for signaling that
yout hs were driving by thensel ves.

M. Dial stated that the safety of young people in Al aska's
communities was the top priority for the departnent. He
said that if the legislation were passed the departnent
woul d diligently research any possi bl e consequences.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked M. Dial renenbered the situation in
Fl orida of gangs targeting tourists.

M. Dial responded in the affirmative.

3:19:34 PM

Vi ce-chair Fairclough suggested that drivers with multiple
drunk driving violations could also be required to put a
sticker in their w ndow. She requested a response from the
Departnent of Law.

HB 212 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

3:21:49 PM
AT EASE

3:29: 37 PM
RECONVENED

#hb294
HOUSE BI LL NO. 294

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



“"An Act relating to the power cost equalization program”

Vi ce-chair Fairclough MOVED to ADOPT the CSHB 294 (FIN) 27-
LS1108\D Wrk Draft as a working docunment before the
conmi ttee.

Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for purpose of discussion.

JCE M CHEL, STAFF, CO CHAIR STOLTZE expl ained the changes
in version D. He stated that version D added section 3 to
the legislation. Section 3 added conditional |anguage; if
the billed passed it would not take effect unless there was
an appropriation of $150 million, or nore, into the Power
Cost Equalization fund (PCE). The appropriation would need
to occur during the 27th | egi sl ature.

Co-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his objection. There being NO
further OBJECTION it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON, SPONSOR, explained that PCE was
established in 1984 and provided financial relief for rural
consuners, up to 500 kilowatt hours per nonth for those who
were eligible. He related that the formula was based on
fuel and non-fuel <cost, and eligible conmmunities were
determ ned by the Regul atory Conm ssion of Alaska. He said
that the program was nonitored by nonthly reports to the

Al aska Ener gy Aut hority ( AEA) . The $400 mllion
appropriation granted in July of 2011 raised the PCE
endowrent to $700 million. He admitted that the |egislation

was major and had a large fiscal note attached. He strongly
believed that it was the best way to assist rural consuner
wi th escal ating fuel prices.

Representative Edgnon detailed that the bill expanded the
monthly cap form 500 kilowatt hours to 600, and allowed for
commercial uses to be brought back into the program wth
the limtation of 600 kilowatt hours, with an overall use
per nonth of 2400 kilowatt hours. He added that the bil
woul d exenpt state and federal facilities and non-
resi dential consumers.

Co-Chair Stoltze understood that the bill included snull
busi nesses.

Representative Edgnon replied in the affirmative. He

expl ai ned that barber shops, coffee shops, "nom and pop"
type businesses would benefit. He shared that nost

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



communities never reached the 60 percent mark of reaching
the 500 kilowatt cap. He stated that the bill was designed
to allow for comrercial entities in smaller conmunities to
have sone relief when providing electricity in an era of
very high cost.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that the introduction of the
| egislation offered an opportunity to educate the general
public on traditional Kkilowatt per hour wusage in the
aver age hone.

3:35:32 PM

Representati ve Edgnon described having to barge in diesel
fuel to rural communities; comunities with fixed utility
costs spread over a small consuner base. He relayed that
these small communities paid electricity rates 3 to 4 tines
the average rate in Anchorage, Fairbanks and Juneau.

Representative Edgnon spoke of a study done by the
Institute of Social and Economic Research which had
revealed that the program was in limted use in rural
areas, and that the conmunities could utilize it nore if
they could keep on top of the required paperwork. He said
the larger users of the program were in the northern and
sout heastern parts of the state. He noted that the fisca
note was for approximately $20 million. He estimated that
this was on the high-end of the price range.

3:39:41 PM

Representative Gara spoke in support of the bill. He noted
that the PCE program was necessary, but stressed the
i nportance of encouraging energy efficiency in the state.
He hoped that in the future a cost savings conmponent could
be added to the program

Representati ve Edgnon pointed out to the commttee that the
state had i nvest ed substantial ly in weat heri zati on
progranms. The program was designed in such a way that if
fuel costs went down, so did the PCE benefit. He said that
in 2011, the Renewable Energy G ant Fund Program provided
approximately $6 mllion in energy savings; nost of which
could be attributed to two projects: the Gustavus False
Creek Hydroelectric Project and the Pillar Muntain Wnd
Project in Kodiak. He added that there had been other
turbine systens in Western Alaska that had contributed to

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



the overall reduction of PCE costs. He stressed that the
report requirenents were very stringent.

3:43:32 PM

Representative WIson queried the average savings per
househol d using the 500 kil owatt fornula.

Representative Edgnon replied that the PCE program saved
participating utilities approxinmately 30 percent.

Co-Chair Stoltze OPENED public testinony.

3:44: 42 PM

VAL ANGASAN, BRI STOL BAY HOUSI NG AUTHORITY, DI LLI NGHAM
(via teleconference), testified in support of t he
| egislation. He shared that the high cost of fuel had
hi ndered grow the opportunity in rural Al aska. He revealed
that in the area mlk was $10 per gallon, $6 for gas. He
said that surplus incone in the area was non-existent. He
felt that the PCE programwas critical in rural areas.

Representative Edgnon interjected that he had heard reports
of gas being as high as $7.23 per gallon in Dillingham

ROBBI E GARRETT, SELF, KAKE, (via teleconference), voiced
support for the legislation. He shared that in rural areas
the rates were high, especially when the rate fell under
the non-comercial rate; nearly $.85 per kilowatt. He
stated that as a business owner he did not view PCE as a
subsidy in perpetuity, but rather tenporary assistance to
hel p stabilize cost.

3:50:42 PM

MEERA KOHLER, CEO, ALASKA VILLAGE ELECTRIC CO OP (AVEQ,
testified in favor of the bill. She stated that AVEC served
54 communities in Alaska with electricity. She stated that
the average residential consunption in Alaska's villages
was approximately 400 kilowatt hours year round. She said
the average varied w dely between regions. She rel ayed that
averages were higher in the northwest because the water and
sewer systens in the region used electricity. She opined
that winter was a tine of hardship in many conmunities;
using well above the 500 kilowatt cap. She said that hones
in the rural areas ranged from 600 to 1200 square feet. She

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



said that AVEC had approxi mately 2800 comrercial custoners,
half of which would be eligible under the bill. She
hi ghlighted that AVEC represented one-third of all PCE
users in Alaska, and that consunption could be expected to
rise 35 to 40 percent were the legislation to pass. She
informed the commttee that as of the end of March 2012

t he bal ance of the PCE Endowrent fund was $780 nmillion. She
qualified that the fund had not been that |arge for very
long; $400 nmillion had recently been injected into the
fund.

Co-Chair Stoltze queried when the last big injection to the
fund had occurred.

MVs. Kohl er expl ai ned that $100 mllion from the
constitutional budget reserve (CBR) had been injected upon
the adoption of the fund in 2000. She added that $85
mllion from the Fordham Coal sale was added several years
later; then in 2006, $187 million was added by Governor
Mur kowsKki .

3:54: 23 PM
AT EASE

3:55: 07 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Thomas asked if M. Kohler saw an end to the
problem of providing affordable electricity to rural
Al aska.

MVs. Kohl er expl ai ned that the effective rate for
residential consuners for the first 500 kilowatt hours was
approximately $.21 per kilowatt hour. She said that unti
the price of electricity was at a reasonable level, $.10 to
$.12 per kilowatt, there would never be enough additiona
f undi ng.

Co-Chair asked if, in the event that the state faced a
deficit due to declining oil production, the PCE fund coul d
be in danger.

Ms. Kohler replied that the fund was predicated on an
adequat e revenue stream

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



Co-Chair Thonmas stressed that oil production needed to be
hi gher in order to fund future energy prograns and projects
in the state.

Representative Edgnon agreed. He felt that the PCE was
expensi ve, but necessary for rural Al aska. He opined that
the conmunities in rural Al aska were shrinking. He said
that the legislature needed to consider what rural Al aska
should look like into the future, with the understandi ng
that the sustainability of communities was tied directly to
ener gy.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that the larger urban areas had
voiced a majority of the support for PCE program

3:59: 01 PM

Representative Joule relayed that it was an anomaly when
oil went over $100 per barrel mark. He said that oi
mai nt ai ni ng above $100 per barrel was contributing the high
cost of energy. He agreed that a lot of nobney was being
spent on the issue, but believed that the noney needed to
be spent in order to deliver energy to all parts of Al aska.
He thought that the structure of the PCE was a creative way
to corral funds for energy relief.

Representative WIlson asked if there were any energy
projects at work in rural Alaska that were | ow ng costs.

Ms. Kohler replied that the conpany owned nore wnd
turbines than any other conpany in the state. She asserted
that AVEC had been aggressive in the pursuit of affordable
energy. She said that the village with the | owest fuel cost
conponent in rural Al aska was Chevak at $.21 per Kkilowatt
hour, nuch Ilower than average fuel <cost of $.32 per
kilowatt hour. Fifty percent of the kilowatt hour sales
were eligible for the PCE fund.

Representative Wl son asked if the $.21 cents was the total
cost or the fuel surcharge.

M . Kohl er responded that it was only the fuel surcharge.

4:02: 54 PM

Co- Chair Thomas wondered what woul d happen to the PCE costs
if the debt were retired.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



Ms. Kohler said that it would have a substantial effect.
She revealed that AVEC had taken $12 million in additiona
long-term debt in 2011. The noney was invested in
communities and was the cash match brought to the Denali
Comm ssion and the renewable energy fund grants. The tota
debt burden for AVEC was «currently approxinmately $48
mllion; the debt service was $1.5 nillion per year; if the
debt were to vanish a $.6 to $.7 drop in cost would be
obser ved.

Co- Chair Thomas wondered what woul d happen if the debt were
retired, and kept from grow ng again.

Ms. Kohler replied that the life of a utility plant was
finite. She said that continual investnment was necessary.
She relayed that AVEC had been whittling away at the debt,
but that the cash match the conpany was responsible for had
risen in recent years.

Co-Chair Thomas asked how nmany representatives served the
areas under AVEC.

Ms. Kohler replied that between the house and the senate
there were 9 or 10.

Co-Chair Thonmas hypothesized that iif each of the 10
| awmakers put in $2 mllion for a capital budget request it
woul d greatly benefit AVEC.

Ms. Kohl er agreed.

Representative Edgnon reiterated that AVEC served 54
communities. He turned attention to the fiscal note. He
said that the $700 mllion should pay for what the bill
proposed to do in a 3 to 4 year period.

Co- Chair Thomas CLOSED public testinony.

HB 294 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

4:08:11 PM

#hb255
HOUSE BILL NO. 255

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



"An Act prohibiting the driver of a notor vehicle from
reading or typing a text nmessage or other nonvoice
message or comunication on a cellular telephone,
conputer, or personal data assistant while driving a
notor vehicle."

Representative Gara testified that the legislation restated

the intention of a bill banning the use of video screens
while driving that had passed many years ago. However, the
original bill did not specifically nmention texting. He

detailed the inportance that texting be reinstated into the
I aw. He accepted that the definition of what was
distracting to a driver was changeable, but stressed that
texting could be clearly defined. He said that during a
four second text nessage a car could advance the |ength of
a football field. He said that studies had shown that
texting while driving raised the risk of a crash or near
collision twentyfold. He revealed that one-third of drivers
on the road were texting while operating their vehicles. He
expressed concern that I|ives would be lost because of
texting while driving. He noted that the Ilegislation took
into consideration future technological advancenents to
limt typing while driving or viewing visually displayed
nessage.

Representati ve Joul e wondered about texting by voice.

Representative Gara replied that it was not covered in the
| egislation. The word "typing" was used in consideration of
evol ving technol ogy. He relayed that the existing
distracted driving statute was not enough because it did
not meke texting while driving a crinme. He also felt that
jurors would synpathize wth people who texted while
driving and would not consider it a crine unless it were
| abel ed one under the |aw.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that the phone could be used as
evidentiary on a texting case.

Representative Gara agreed that the phone would record the
date and time of the text.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the court would need a sopena for
the cell phone.

Representative Gara believed that the accident would give

probable cause to renove evidence from the <car. He
reiterated that juries would not convict under existing

House Fi nance Committee 22 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



laws. He hoped that there would be a public service
canpai gn to educate people of the dangers of texting while
driving. He pointed out to the comnmttee a letter fromthe
chi ef of police in nmenber packets (copy on file).

4:16: 28 PM

Representative WIlson directed attention to page 2, lines 7
through 11. She understood that the term "visual display”
pertained to anything you would look at like a GPS or and
OnStar map.

Representative Gara replied no. He explained that line 20
of the bill contained original |anguage that exenpted

mappi hg devi ces.

Representative WIson understood that a person coul d expect
a m sdeneanor fine of approximately $300 for texting while
dri vi ng.

Representative Gara responded only if the driver was
texting while the car was in notion.

Representative WIson pointed out that the bill did not
di stinguish between a driver who mght swerve a little,
from a driver who actually hits another car or person due
to texting. She understood that under the |egislation both
actions woul d be considered a m sdeneanor.

Representative Gara relayed that the understanding was not
entirely correct. He clarified that if the driver was only
texting, and did not hurt anyone, it would be considered a
Class A msdeneanor. He furthered that under the current
law if a driver injures soneone they would be charged with
reckless or negligent driving. He stressed that the
addition of texting to the latter scenario noved the crine
up a level. He asserted that texting while driving was
knowi ngly dangerous, therefore causing an accident while
texting could be considered a preneditated act.

4:20: 00 PM

Vi ce-chair Fai rcl ough asked about t axi cabs. She
hi ghlighted that sone taxi's had an electronic screen for
communi cating with dispatch

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



Representative Gara replied that a section for dispatch had
been witten into the original legislation. He cited page
3, line 3, which allowed the viewing of a dispatch screen
for use of passenger transport. He though a case could be
made to renove the provision, but noted that the renoval
coul d negatively inpact businesses. He said that the he had
not seen evidence that the dispatch screens were a nmjor
danger.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough accepted why the provision was there.
She warned that technol ogy was advanci ng qui ckly.

Representative Gara noted that even |aw enforcenent had
internal nmanuals that were followed concerning visua
screens while driving.

Vice-chair Fairclough clarified that it would not be an
illegal act if a person were texting while conpletely
st opped.

Representative Gara agreed. He discussed that it was only a
crime if a vehicle was noving. He stressed that the intent
of the bill was not to throw i nnocent people in jail.

4:24: 35 PM

Co- Chair Thomas opined the reality of people being injured
or killed because of texting while driving. He shared that
he pulled over to look at any texts that he received. He
did not believe officers should have the ability to text
while driving. He offered strong support for t he
| egi sl ati on.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough MOVED to adopt CS HB 255 (JUD), 27-
LS1165\T as a working docunent before the conmittee.
Representative Doogan directed attention to t he
indeterminate fiscal note. He noted that indeterm nate
fiscal notes made the committee's job nuch harder because
they know what was being agreed on in terns of cost. He
believed that people should even not talk on their cell
phones when driving. He urged support for the |egislation.

Co-Chair Thomas asked the conmttee to zero out the
indeterm nate fiscal note fromthe Public Defender Agency.

House Fi nance Committee 24 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



Vi ce-chair Fairclough MOVED to zero out the Public Defender
Agency fiscal note (OVB conmponent nunber 1631). There being
NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

Representative Costello had signed on as a sponsor and was
in strong support of the bill.

4:30: 26 PM

Co- Chair Thomas OPENED public testinony.
Co- Chair Thomas CLOSED public testinony.

Vi ce-chair Fai r cl ough addr essed t he fiscal not es:
Departnment of Law, Departnent of Admnistration, Court
System and Departnent of Corrections.

Co-Chair Thomas MOWED to report CS HB 255 (JUD), 27-
LS1165\T out of conmmttee with individual recomrendations
and t he acconpanying fiscal notes.

CSHB 255(JUD) was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with one zero fiscal note fromthe
Department of Law, one zero fiscal note for Departnment of
Adm nistration by the House Finance Conmttee and three
previously published zero fiscal notes: FNL (ADM, FN2
(COR), FN3 (CRT).

#
ADJ OURNVENT

4:33:24 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:33 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 04/ 04/ 12 1:47 P. M



